
1501 NE 2nd Avenue, Miami, Florida 33132 
Phone: (305) 523-0623   Fax: (305) 523-0613 

To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

The Honorable Mari Tere Rojas, Chairwoman 
   and Members, Miami-Dade County School Board 

Dr. Jose L. Dotres, Superintendent, Miami-Dade County Public Schools 

Felix Jimenez, Inspector General  

November 30, 2022 

Receipt of 3rd and Final Status Report Pertaining to the Implementation of the 
OIG’s Driver Education Program Recommendations; Ref. IG-17-0001-SI 

As you may recall, on September 2, 2021, the Office of the Inspector General (OIG) issued a 
final report on the Miami-Dade County Public Schools (M-DCPS) Driver Education Program.1  
In that report, the OIG found that M-DCPS knowingly submitted over $6.2 million of ineligible 
expenses for reimbursement from the Miami-Dade County Drivers Education Safety Trust 
Fund (Trust Fund). The OIG report contained eight recommendations, to which the M-DCPS 
Administration embraced its full commitment to their implementation.  

Since issuing the final report, the OIG has requested, and received, three progress reports 
from the Superintendent’s Office.  The first two status reports were received in December 
2021 and in April 2022 and are posted on the OIG’s website.2   

On May 24, 2022, the OIG requested a third and final progress report to be provided on or 
before November 15, 2022.  The OIG requested updates in four specific areas: 

• Enrollment numbers for the summer Driver Education Program

• Teachers having the specific endorsement courses to teach Driver Education

• Status of Adaptive Driver Education vehicles and student eligibility to partake in
Adaptive Driver Education Program

• Status of all driving range improvements and vehicle storage cages by school site

The Superintendent’s Office submitted its last progress report on November 15, 2022. 
(Attachment 1).  We have reviewed the status report and are pleased that M-DCPS has made 

1 OIG Final Report of Investigation – Miami-Dade County Public Schools Driver Education Program, IG-17-0001-SI 
2 Receipt of 1st Status Report and OIG Request for a 2nd Update; Receipt of 2nd Status Report and OIG Request for 
a 3rd Update 

https://www.miamidadeig.org/resources-oig/pdf/2021-MDCPS/2021-09-02-oig-final-report-dep-ig-17-0001-si.pdf
https://www.miamidadeig.org/resources-oig/pdf/2022-MDCPS/2022-31-01-oig-status-report-dep-ig-17-0001-si.pdf
https://www.miamidadeig.org/resources-oig/pdf/2022-MDCPS/2022-24-05-drivers-ed-oig-request-for-final-status-report.pdf
https://www.miamidadeig.org/resources-oig/pdf/2022-MDCPS/2022-24-05-drivers-ed-oig-request-for-final-status-report.pdf
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progress on the recommendations, especially in holding the Driver Education summer course 
at three locations servicing 99 students.  The OIG conducted unannounced site visits at each 
school location during the summer months and were impressed with the enthusiasm exhibited 
by both students and teachers participating in the Driver Education Program.  It is 
encouraging to see the implementation of endorsement courses to certify an additional group 
of twenty (20) teachers to teach Driver Education and augment the current group of eleven 
(11) fully endorsed Driver Education teachers.

Regarding the $6.2 million financial liability owed to the Trust Fund, the OIG is aware that 
M-DCPS officials continue to engage with the Miami-Dade County’s Office of Management
and Budget (OMB).  However, to our knowledge, there has been no acceptable corrective
action plan or agreement on how to resolve the liability.  Accounting for the ineligible
reimbursements is a threshold matter for M-DCPS to receive future disbursements from the
Trust Fund.  The OIG, in our final report, acknowledged that this would not be an easy task
and that full reconciliation could take several years.  We also provided suggestions on
restructuring Trust Fund payments prospectively to include advances subject to annual
reconciliation. The OIG will continue monitoring this ongoing dialogue between M-DCPS and
OMB, and the adoption of any new procedures to draw down future reimbursements and/or
advancements from the Trust Fund.

The OIG is fully committed to ensuring that the M-DCPS Driver Education Program provides 
meaningful behind-the-wheel instruction to the students of Miami-Dade County and that 
disbursements from the County’s Drivers Education Safety Trust Fund adhere to all 
applicable statutory requirements.  While the OIG intends to fully monitor this program going 
forward, especially the resolution of the $6.2 million liability, the OIG is closing this 
investigation and will not be requiring another written report from the Administration.   
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